
 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, February 26, 2024 
3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
         BLOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN                           DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
                  THOMAS REITZ                                                             PAULA BROWN                                                                                                     
                  ANNA MARIA TABERNIK                                            JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES- January 22, 2024 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL  

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their 
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful 
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or 
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's 
time to another is not allowed. 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix 

8. 2018 ONE CENT TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX UPDATE - Brittanee Bishop, Program and Finance 
Manager 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO ENTER INTO AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN BEAUFORT 
COUNTY AND THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY 
TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM PROJECTS.  (FISCAL IMPACT: The County shall reimburse SCDOT for costs 
incurred as part of SCDOT’s reviews, coordination, and oversight per project throughout development. 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

SCDOT will invoice the County no more often than quarterly for these costs. Typically, the amounts are 
nominal and do not require approval further than the ACA for approval) - Jared Fralix, Assistant County 
Administrator 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE SET ASIDE 
PROGRAM FUND GRANT FROM THE US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S FEDERAL HIGHWAY 
ADMINISTRATION (FHWA) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,177,868,.71 FOR THE ALLJOY ROAD SIDEWALK PROJECT 
(FISCAL IMPACT: The grant is an 80/20 match: 80% from USDOT FHWA and 20% Local Match. The grant 
award is for a total of $1,177,868.71 that will be refunded from the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales 
Tax account 4705-80-0000-54500 to be used for the construction of the Alljoy Road Sidewalk Pathway 
project. With a total project estimated cost of $1,472,335.89, the County’s match is $294,467.18 from 
account number 4705-80-0000-54500) - Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator  

11. REQUEST FOR PRIVATE ROAD ACCEPTANCE OF SCHEPER LANE INTO THE COUNTY ROAD INVENTORY- Neil 
Desai, P.E. Public Works Director 

12. ADJOURNMENT 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

2

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
NO EARLIER THAN Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government 

Robert Smalls Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, January 22, 2024 
3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County's website to hear the Council’s discussion of a specific topic or the 
complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295733  

 
COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 

         BLOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN                           DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
                  THOMAS REITZ                                                             PAULA BROWN                                                                                                     
                  ANNA MARIA TABERNIK                                            JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chair Cunningham called the meeting to order at 3:10PM 

PRESENT 

Committee Chairman Logan Cunningham 
Committee Vice-Chairman David P. Bartholomew 
Council Member Thomas Reitz 
Council Member Paula Brown 
Council Member Anna Maria Tabernik  
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Ex-Officio Joseph Passiment 
 

ABSENT 
Council Member Mark Lawson 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Committee Chair Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance 

3

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295733


Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

Committee Chair Cunningham stated public notice of this meeting had been published, posted, and 
distributed in compliance with SC FOIA. 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion to Amend:  It was moved by Vice-Chairman Bartholomew, Seconded by Ex-Officio Passiment to 
postpone item number 8  "2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax Update"  to the next Public Facilities 
and Safety Committee Meeting on February 26, 2024.  

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

Main Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Ex-Officio Passiment, to 
approve the agenda as amended.   

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - November 27, 2023 & December 11, 2023 

Motion:  It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, seconded by Council Member Howard to approve the 
minutes of November 27, 2023 & December 11, 2023.   

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 
 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD  

There were no citizen comments. 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix 
 Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full update.  

 https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295733?ts=170 

 Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure, Jared Fralix, updated the committee with a reflection on 
what was done over the past year.  Hannah Nichols, Public Information Officer for Beaufort County 
created a year in review report that included a lot of items that came through the Public Facilities and 
Safety Committee. Impact fees were updated and finalized. A $30 million contract was funded and 
awarded for the terminal improvements at the Hilton Head Airport. 115 acres of property has been 
purchased for the future law enforcement center. Mr. Fralix fast forwarded to 30 years to state the 
population has doubled, probably tripled in the last 30 years. 115 acres were secured and close to $6 
million was invested in it. The framework was established to provide support to our military installations 
through intergovernmental support agreements and supporting the military through IGSAs we too can 
share that we are supporting a National Defense. The boat landing masterplan was completed. Via court 
order, this year a new embarkation location had to be made. The location was moved across the creek to 
CC Haigh. A future RFP, related to the upcoming Sales Tax Referendum, a solicitation for a consultant to 
help with program management for that future Sales Tax program.  

Council Member Tabernik asked if there was no mention of the 170 Triangle. Mr. Fralix replied that’s 
right, that’s in there too.” 

 

 

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295733?ts=170


Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

8. 2018 ONE CENT TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX UPDATE 

POSTPONED UNTIL THE NEXT PUBLIC FACILITIES AND SAFETY MEETING 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO APAC ATLANTIC, INC. OF SAVANNAH, GA, FOR IFB # 
042523HXD TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT ($3,488,760) (FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project will be funded by an FAA grant (90%) and an SC Aeronautics grant (10%). Initial funds will 
be drawn from GL account 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport Director 

 
Airport Director Jon Rembold stated that this project was designed a couple years ago, and it went out 
to bid last Spring but because of some FAA items needing to be addressed the award of the contract was 
put off. APAC has held the bid number, but it is at the end of their hold. Here to get authorization  so we 
can start working with procurement to formalize the contract.  

Motion: It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, seconded by Council Member Tabernik, to recommend 
approval of a contract to award to Apac Atlantic, Inc of Savannah, GA, for IFB #042523HXD Taxiway F 
Rehabilitation and Construction Project.  

Discussion: Committee Chairman Cunningham asks what the fiscal impact would be. Mr. Rembold stated 
it will be funded by the FAA and there will be a state grant, so it will be completely funded. 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 2119-2302 TO TALBERT, BRIGHT, AND ELLINGTON 
(TBE) FOR CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND FAA-MANDATED RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
SERVICES (FISCAL IMPACT: Total value of work authorization shall not exceed $154,883.00. This project 
will be funded by an FAA grant (90%) and a SCAC grant (10%. Funds will be drawn from 5402-90-0000-
57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport Director 

 Airport Director Jon Rembold explains the FAA says that when you get a grant from the FAA they expect 
you to have construction administration in place with your consultant team. Also, there is a resident 
project representative or project inspector, and that person needs to be on site wherever there is 
construction going on. These services are paid for the same way with the same grant as the construction 
would pay for. 

Motion: It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, seconded by Council Member Reitz, to recommend 
approval of work authorization 2119-2302 to Talbert, Bright, and Ellington (TBE) for Construction 
Administration and FAA-Mandated Resident Project Representative Services. 

Discussion: No discussion. 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 2119-2304 TO TALBERT, BRIGHT, AND ELLINGTON 
(TBE) TO PREPARE AN ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT IN SUPPORT OF THE ST. JAMES BAPTIST CHURCH 
PROJECT ($366,816) (FISCAL IMPACT: The total value of this work authorization shall not exceed 
$366,816.00. This project will be funded by a future grant (90%). The final 10% will be paid with airport 
funds and/or SCAC grant funds. Funds will be drawn from 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport 
Director 

5

Item 5.



Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

Airport Director Jon Rembold stated that anytime you have federal funds involved you have to satisfy the 
environmental requirements. This is a step that will be taken to satisfy the environmental requirements 
for an eventual FAA participation in the purchase and relocation of St. James Baptist Church. 

 

Motion:   It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Reitz, to recommend 
approval of a work authorization 2119-2304 to Talbert, Bright, and Ellington (TBE) to prepare and 
environmental assessment in support of the St. James Baptist Church Project. 

Discussion: No discussion. 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO BEAUFORT CONSTRUCTION OF SC, LLC. FOR IFB 
#101823 M.C. RILEY POOL ENCLOSURE & CLIMATE CONTROL ($2,002,000) (FISCAL IMPACT: Contract 
award in the amount of $2,002,000.00 with a $200,200.00 contingency fund for a total of $2,202,200.00. 
Funding comes from Parks and Recreation Capital Fund, 1040-80-1600-54420. Current account balance 
is $3,956,064.35) - Eric Larson, Capital Projects Director 

 Capital Projects Director, Eric Larson explained, this is the M.C. Riley Pool, second phase. The first phase 
is completed. Last summer, the roof was replaced on that facility. Phase two is interior renovation , HVAC, 
and building envelope. Doors will be replaced to seal it so that it can permanently become a climate 
control facility. A bid was put out using the Governmental Co-Op Contract Mechanism and the project 
award was unsuccessful at that time.  A bid was put out for a second time and one bid was received from 
Beaufort Construction for $2,002,000. Asking for a 10% contingency to add on. Recommending award of 
contract to Beaufort Construction in the amount of $2,202,200.  

Motion: It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, seconded by Council Member Brown, to recommend 
approval of a contract award to Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC for IFB #101823 M.C. Riley Pool Enclosure 
& Climate Control. 

Discussion: Council Member Tabernik mentioned that she was a little surprised there was only one bid. 
Mr. Larson explained it is a big project. The Governmental Co-Op Contract routes and couldn’t find a 
contractor that could give a price within the budget. Council Member Tabernik asked if Beaufort 
Construction is also doing the Port Royal Library. Mr. Larson responded yes. 

 Committee Chairman Cunningham asked what the timeframe is on starting and completion of the project. 
Mr. Larson replied they have 190 days, so six months. They will have to talk with Parks and Recreation 
about how to schedule the closure. Will the facility be closed at this time, yes it will be.  

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(SCDOT) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED UNDER THE CROSS ISLAND PARKWAY ADJACENT TO THE BROAD CREEK 
BOAT LANDING PARCEL 552 010 000 0650 0000 (FISCAL IMPACT: N/A) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

 Mr. Fralix explained this project started before the ferry as properties to swap with the town. The Town 
does not own the property, DOT owns the property. Staff worked steadily to get an encroachment permit 
in the interim while working through the development site plan with the intent to come back with a lease 
agreement. Both legal teams coordinated to develop a lease agreement. This is a DOT lease; it is 

6

Item 5.



Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

underneath the bridge at Cross Island, so they are not going to donate that property. They’ve offered a 
35-year lease at no cost to continue use under parking underneath the bridge.  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Tabernik, to 
recommend approval of recommend approval of an ordinance authorizing the interim county 
administrator to enter into a lease agreement with the South Carolina Department of Transportation 
(SCDOT) for property located under the Cross Island parkway adjacent to the broad creek boat landing 
parcel 552 010 000 0650 0000. 

Discussion: No Discussion 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

 

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL  OF A REQUEST TO PURCHASE (1) NEW CAT MODEL: 926 SMALL WHEEL LOADER 
(FISCAL IMPACT: $224,402.59) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

 Mr. Fralix explained this equipment is inside Stormwater. There is an existing John Deere, a 2007 that is 
an old asset. The old asset will be disposed of and purchase a new one for $224,000. The funding source 
is Stormwater, and the account balance is $531,000 before the purchase. 

Motion:  It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, Seconded by Council Member Tabernik to approve the 
purchase of (1) new cat model: 926 small wheel loader. 

Discussion: No Discussion 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection.  
 

(Items 15 through 18 were taken together) 

15. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO EUROVIA ATLANTIC DBA BLYTHE FOR IFB #011224E YEAR 7 
RESURFACING PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: $5,036,574.54) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

 Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 

 https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295516?ts=1318  

 Mr. Fralix explained the next four items have to do with the year seven resurfacing projects. There are 
two paving programs; one for dirt road paving which is primarily funded through tag funds and a 
resurfacing program which is funded through CTC funds. Five years’ worth of roads were completed in the 
first five years. The overall health of the pavement system is completely good. In the second, five-year 
program it’s starting to get in more preventative maintenance. There are lesser treatments but getting 
more road miles. This year’s resurfacing program is broken into three parts. CTC has a requirement to 
spend 33% of the funds that are received back on the DOT Network. The remaining funds can be spent on 
other public roads. There is $2.3 million being spent on county roads and $1.7 million on DOT roads. There 
will be some patching from Buck Island to Red Cedar. The microsurfacing that will take place are all on 
County owned roads. The rejuvenator is done in year two, year five, and year ten. In total with all road 
improvements that are planned, year seven worth of contracts it about $5 Million. 

Motion: It was moved by Ex-Officio Passiment, Seconded by Vice-Chairman Bartholomew to approve 
items 16 - recommendation of award to Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe for ifb #011224E year 7 resurfacing 
project; 17- recommend approval to award Transystems with year 7 resurfacing construction 
management and CEI; and 18 - recommend approval to award a sole source contract to Pavement 
Technologies, Inc. For year 7 rejuvenator, together as 1 item. 

7

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295516?ts=1318


Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection.  
 

16. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD TRANSYSTEMS WITH YEAR 7 RESURFACING CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND CEI ($196,672.20) (FISCAL IMPACT: Transystems bid total of $163,893.50, with a 
20% contingency of $32,778.70, for a project cost of $196,672.20. The funding for this project is CTC 
Infrastructure account number 2343-30-0000-54500, with a balance of $15,808,966.86)  - Jared Fralix, 
P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

  

17. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT TO PAVEMENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
FOR YEAR 7 REJUVENATOR (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is for materials and construction in the 
amount of $172,259.94. Staff recommends a 10% contingency of $17,225.99, bringing the project's total 
cost to $198,485.93. The funding for this project will be from CTC Infrastructure account number 2343-
30-0000-54500 with a balance of $15,808,966.86) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, 
Infrastructure 

18. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT TO SLURRY PAVERS, INC. FOR 7-YEAR 
PAVEMENT PRESERVATION ($632,551.87) (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is for materials and 
construction in the amount of $527,126.56. Staff recommends a 20% contingency of $105,425.31, 
bringing the project's total cost to $632,551.87. The funding for this project will be CTC Infrastructure 
account number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of $15,808,966.86) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant 
County Administrator, Infrastructure 

19. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO i2 RECYCLE FOR RFP #102423 - RECYCLABLES, 
PROCESSING, AND MARKETING FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY ($1,129,618) (FISCAL IMPACT: This is a unit rate 
contract. The estimated cost for the contract is $1,129,618.  A certain amount from FY24 and a certain 
amount from FY25 will be budgeted for FY25 under disposal services. The current funding account is 
5010-90-1340-5116) – Victoria Hoffman, Solid Waste and Recycling Program Manager 

Please watch the video stream available on the County's website to view the full discussion. 

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295516?ts=2169  

 RFP 102423 was advertised on Vendor Registry September 19, 2023 and in the SC Business Opportunity 
Magazine and the Island Packet. The selected vendor will provide the transportation of recyclable 
materials for processing, processing of recyclable materials, and marketing and sale of recyclable 
materials. The initial contract term would be for 5 years from August 1, 2024, to July 31, 2029, with the 
option for three additional annual renewals. 

 Discussion: Council Member Howard mentioned she’s glad to see there were several bidders. She asked 
where is i2 headquarters and how this will affect the MRF. Ms. Hoffman replied Hardeeville. All recycling 
will be processed by i2 and if not, a partner in close proximity and not enough recycling stream is being 
created to be able to profitably manage a MRF.   

 Council Member Dawson asked how this will play into the collections when there is limited space at the 
convenience centers. Ms. Hoffman replied the large four centers will continue to have the receptables 
and the i2 bins will be switched from what’s currently in place.  

Motion:  It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Ex-Officio Passiment  to recommend 
approval of a contract award to i2 Recycle for recyclables, processing, and marketing for Beaufort County. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

 

8

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/295516?ts=2169


Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

 
 

20. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MILITARY ENHANCEMENT PLAN FUND 
GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FOR THE AMOUNT OF 
$3,392,328 FOR THE LAUREL BAY ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: The grant is an 80/20 
match: 80% from SCDVA and 20% Local Match. The grant award is for a total of $3,392,328 that will be 
deposited in the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax account 4705-80-0000-43765 and used for the 
Laurel Bay Road Pathway project. With a total project cost, plus contingency equaling $4,950,940.79, 
the County’s match is $1,558,612.79 from account number 4705-80-0000-54500) - Jared Fralix, P.E., 
Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Dawson, seconded by Ex-Officio Passiment to approve a 
resolution to accept the Military Enhancement Plan Fund Grant from the South Carolina Department of 
Veterans' Affairs for the Laurel Bay Road Pathway Project. 

Discussion: No Discussion 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

21. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO IPW CONSTRUCTION GROUP FOR IFB #120123E LAUREL BAY RD 
PATHWAY PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: $4,125,783.99funding for this project will be South Carolina 
Veterans’ Affairs Military Enhancement Grant for $3,392,328 and the remainder from the 2018 One Cent 
Sales Tax – Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways account number 4705-80-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$17,735,384.) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Ex-Officio Passiment to recommend 
approval to award IWP Construction Group for the Laurel Bay Rd. Pathway Project. 

Discussion: No Discussion 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

22. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO NIX CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR IFB #101023 
OKATIE RIVER PARK (FISCAL IMPACT: $2,922,403.00) - Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital Projects  

Motion:  It was moved by  made by Ex-Officio Passiment, seconded by Council Member Tabernik to 
recommend approval to award Nix Construction Co. Inc. Okatie River Park. 

Discussion: Council Member Tabernik mentions she looked at the fiscal impact and the tax grant money 
for this, part of it is A-Tax money. 

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 
 

23. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A 2024 TRANSPORTATION SALES AND USE TAX 
REFERENDUM (FISCAL IMPACT: If approved by Council and the electorate, the county will levy and 
impose a one percent (1%) sales and use tax throughout the entire county for fifteen (15) years or until 
the county raises $1.625 billion in revenue, whichever occurs first) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

 On December 11, 2023, County Council adopted Resolution 2023/66. In adopting the Resolution, Council 
accepted and adopted the recommendations of the Sales Tax Advisory Committee (“STAC”) which Council 
established on June 12, 2023 and whose purpose it was to study possible sales taxes for three different 
purposes: transportation, capital projects, and education capital projects. STAC recommended proceeding 
with a transportation sales tax only in 2024. It recommended a referendum question to be placed on the 
ballot in November 2024 which asks voters to approve a one percent (1%) sales and use tax in Beaufort 
County beginning the following year and extending for fifteen (15) years or until the County raises $1.625 

9

Item 5.



Public Facilities and Safety Committee – Beaufort County, SC 

billion, whichever occurs first, to fund the series of critical transportation and mobility projects set forth 
in Exhibit A to the Resolution. Based on Resolution 2023/66, administration brings forward the attached 
ordinance to levy and impose a one percent (1%) sales and use tax, subject to a referendum, pursuant to 
S.C. Code §4-37-30; to define the specific purposes and to designate projects for which the proceeds of 
the sales and use tax may be used; to provide for the maximum time for which the tax may be imposed; 
to provide the estimated cost of the projects to be funded; to provide for a county-wide referendum on 
the issuance of general obligations bonds; to prescribe the contents of the ballot questions in the 
referendum 

Motion to Amend:  It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Tabernik to 
remove the word reimagine on page 123 on the ordinance draft.  

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

Motion to Amend:  It was moved by Council Member Bartholomew, seconded by Council Member Glover 
to amend section 2.3 on page 123 and question 2 on page 128 to reflect the bonding in the amount of up 
to $650 million.  

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection. 

Main Motion:  It was moved by, Ex-Offico Passiment, seconded by Council Member Glover to approve 
the agenda as amended.   

The Vote - Motion was approved without objection.  

 

24. ADJOURNMENT: 4:05 pm 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

 

COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

BY: _____________________________________                             

           Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

 

Ratified:   

 

10

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax Update 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – February 26, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Infrastructure 

Brittanee Bishop, Program and Finance Manager 

(10 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2018, the citizens of Beaufort County voted to impose a 4 year, $120M referendum for 
transportation projects. The projects are as follows: 

US 278 Corridor Traffic Improvements  

Lady’s Island Corridor Traffic Improvements  

Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

An update on the projects associated with the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

For information only. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

For information only. 

 

11

Item 8.



Public Facilities and Safety Committee 
February 26, 2024

12

Item 8.



Referendum

2018 One Cent Transportation Sales 

Tax for 4 Years or $120 Million 

Collected

$80M - US 278 Corridor Traffic 

Improvements

$30M - Lady’s Island Corridor Traffic 

Improvements

$10M - Sidewalks and Multi-Use 

Pathways 

13

Item 8.



US 278 Corridor Traffic Improvements 

US 278 Corridor Improvements (scdot278corridor.com)

14

Item 8.

https://www.scdot278corridor.com/


Insert Copy here

Lady’s Island  Corridor Traffic Improvements 

15

Item 8.



Lady’s Island  Corridor Traffic Improvements 

•Sams Point Turn Lane

Completed

•Airport Frontage Road Phase 1

In 
Construction

• Lady’s Island Middle School Realignment

• Airport Frontage Road Phase 2

• Hazel Farm Road & Gay Drive

• Sunset Drive & Miller Drive West

• US 21, US 21 Business, SC 802 Corridor

In Design

•Mayfair Court Extension

•Beaufort High School Realignment

•Meadowbrook DriveOn Hold
16

Item 8.



Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways

17 Projects

8 Recommended

14 Priorities

24 Locations

17

Item 8.



18

Item 8.



19

Item 8.



20

Item 8.



Beaufort County One Cent Tax Program

100 Ribaut Rd Beaufort, SC 29902

(843) 255-2700

www.beaufortcountypenny.com 21

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation  of Approval to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Beaufort County and 
the South Carolina Department of Transportation for Beaufort County Transportation Program Projects.  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – February 26, 2024  

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Infrastructure 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This agreement is between Beaufort County and SCDOT for 9 transportation projects to establish 
responsibilities of each jurisdiction throughout the development process. Similarly to the 2018 One 
Cent Transportation Sales Tax Agreement, Beaufort County and SCDOT will be able to expedite 
projects in lieu of each individual project moving through the encroachment permit.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The projects include:  

1. S-163 (Burnt Church Road) – 3-lane widening with bicycle/pedestrian facilities from S-13 (Bridge 
Street/Alljoy Road) to Bluffton Parkway. 

2. S-549 (Detour Road) – 10’ Multi-Use Pathway from Chisholm Hill Road to S-42 (Seabrook Road). 
3. The Triangle Project – Improvements to US 278 from SC 170 to S-442 (Argen Boulevard), SC 170 

from Okatie Center Boulevard S. to SC 462 (Lowcountry Drive), and S-442 (Argent Boulevard) 
from US 278 to SC 170. 

4. S-281 (Ribaut Road) – Corridor improvement project from US 21 Business (Boundary Street) to 
the Russell Bell Bridge 

5. SC 170 (Okatie Highway) – Intermediate projects for access management from US 278 
interchange to Tidewatch Drive. 

6. SC 46 – Widening and access management improvements from Jasper County to Buckwalter 
Parkway. 

7. Ribaut Road (SC 281) and Lady’s Island Drive (US 21) – Intersection improvements. 
8. Meridian Road/Island Causeway/Lady’s Island Drive – Realigning the intersections to create one 

for safety improvements.  
9. US 278 – Widening from S-442 (Argent Blvd) to I-95. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The County shall reimburse SCDOT for costs incurred as part of SCDOT’s reviews, coordination, and 
oversight per project throughout development. SCDOT will invoice the County no more often than 
quarterly for these costs. Typically, the amounts are nominal and do not require approval further 
than the ACA for approval.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement between Beaufort County and the 
South Carolina Department of Transportation for Beaufort County Transportation Program Projects. 

22

Item 9.



OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny Staff recommends approval of the Intergovernmental Agreement between 
Beaufort County and the South Carolina Department of Transportation for Beaufort County 
Transportation Program Projects. 

Next step: Move forward with a recommendation to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement 
between Beaufort County and the South Carolina Department of Transportation for Beaufort County 
Transportation Program Projects on County Council Regular Session to be held on March 11, 2024. 

 

23

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 1 of 27 
 
 

 
Cooperative Intergovernmental Agreement 

Between 
Beaufort County, South Carolina 

And the 
South Carolina Department of Transportation 

For 
Beaufort County Transportation Program Projects 

 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this ______ day of ________________, 20_____, by and between 
Beaufort County, hereinafter referred to as “County,” and the South Carolina Department of 
Transportation, hereinafter referred to as “SCDOT,” collectively “the Parties.” 
 

WITNESSETH THAT: 
 

WHEREAS, County has developed a list of projects they wish to undertake on State 
roads; and 
 
 WHEREAS, County and SCDOT desire to work together in the development and 
delivery of these projects, hereinafter “the Program;” and 
 
 WHEREAS,  County is a body politic with all the rights and privileges of such including 
the power to contract as necessary and incidental powers to carry out County’s functions covered 
under this Agreement; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, SCDOT is an agency of the State of South Carolina with the authority to 
enter into contracts necessary for the proper discharge of its functions and duties; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the several promises to be faithfully performed 
by the Parties hereto as set forth herein, County and SCDOT do hereby agree as follows: 
 
I. GENERAL RECITALS: 
 

A. Purpose: 
 
The purpose of this work is to construct and improve certain transportation facilities on the 
State Highway System throughout Beaufort County using local funds. 

 
B. Description of Work: 

 
This Agreement covers the projects listed in Attachment A, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein.  Projects shall hereinafter be referred to as the “Project” or the 
“Projects.”  The provisions herein shall only apply to the portions of the Projects which are 
currently on the State Highway System or are proposed to be conveyed to SCDOT for 

24

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 2 of 27 
 
 

acceptance into the State Highway System.  Unless otherwise agreed, these provisions shall 
not apply to Projects which are to be owned or maintained by County, a municipality, or 
any other non-state entity.  Where local roadways tie into state or federal roadways, 
changes within SCDOT’s right-of-way will fall under the terms of this Agreement unless 
changes are approved by SCDOT through an encroachment permit. 

 
Prior to Project initiation, County shall identify whether federal funds will be used.  If use 
of federal funds is anticipated, the Project must be identified in either SCDOT’s most 
current Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), or the most current 
fiscally constrained long range plan for the specific project improvement category.  If 
federal funds are used, Project shall be developed and constructed in accordance with the 
joint Stewardship and Oversight Agreement between the Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) and SCDOT.  The FHWA will make the determination of eligibility for Federal 
Transportation Funding at the time of request for authorization of each phase of the Project. 
 
The scope of each Project shall be determined by County during the planning phase.  
County shall carry out the specific activities necessary to implement and construct the 
Projects, which includes:  planning, design, right-of-way acquisition, utility and railroad 
coordination, construction, and other associated coordination and administrative activities, 
unless noted otherwise herein.  If County requests that SCDOT administer any phase of 
work for a Project, a supplemental agreement will be drafted to outline the responsibilities 
of County and SCDOT.  Any Project phases administered by SCDOT will be subject to 
scheduling and prioritization within SCDOT’s current workload. 

 
C. Scope of Work: 

 
The scope of each Project is described in Attachment A.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed to require County to undertake or complete a Project.  Those 
obligations shall be solely governed by the actions of Beaufort County Council and 
applicable State law.  However, if federal funds are expended and a federally-funded 
Project is not completed, for whatever reason, repayment of the federal funds may be 
required. 

 
II. COMMUNICATIONS: 
 

A. County and SCDOT agree that regular and thorough communication about this work is 
essential for the completion of the Projects.  County and SCDOT further agree that each 
Party will strive to communicate at both the management and staff levels. 
 

1. The County Transportation Director and/or the designated County Representative 
shall meet with SCDOT’s Program Manager on an as-needed basis. 
 

2. Additional coordination meetings will be planned and mutually agreed upon as 
necessary to coordinate the work. 

 

25

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 3 of 27 
 
 

B. SCDOT will provide such technical support and advice as requested by County to assist in 
the planning and execution of the Projects, subject to the provisions of Section IV.C. of 
this Agreement. 

 
III. OBLIGATIONS OF SCDOT: 
 

A. To the extent permitted by existing South Carolina law, SCDOT hereby assumes complete 
responsibility for any loss resulting from bodily injuries (including death) or damages to 
property, arising out of any negligent act or negligent failure to act on SCDOT’s part, or 
the part of any employee or agent of SCDOT in the performance of or participation in the 
work undertaken under this Agreement. 
 

B. SCDOT shall perform all or any part of the work with its own forces or may contract out 
any of the work or services to outside private or governmental consultants or contractors 
at SCDOT’s sole discretion if SCDOT determines that such contracting out would be 
more efficient or cost effective or would result in more expeditious completion of the 
Project. 
 

C. SCDOT shall be entitled to bill or draw payment at its normal and customary billing rates 
for services by its in-house personnel. 

D. SCDOT agrees to accept responsibility for normal maintenance of standard transportation 
materials, structures, and workmanship within SCDOT rights-of-way according to 
common local practices for each Project.   

 
E. SCDOT agrees to accept the Projects in accordance with Section VI.E. of this Agreement.   

 
IV. OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY: 
 

A. To the extent permitted by existing South Carolina law, County hereby assumes complete 
responsibilities for any loss resulting from bodily injuries (including death) or damages to 
property, arising out of any negligent act or negligent failure to act on County’s part, or the 
part of any employee or agent of County in performance of the work undertaken under this 
Agreement. 
 

B. County shall provide or cause to be provided all services for the execution of activities for 
the planning, development, and delivery of the Projects, unless noted otherwise herein. 
 

C. County shall reimburse SCDOT for costs incurred as part of SCDOT’s reviews, 
coordination, and oversight.  SCDOT will invoice County no more often than quarterly for 
these costs. 

 
D. County agrees to assign a right of entry or other property rights necessary to SCDOT in 

order for SCDOT to maintain the Projects until such time as all rights-of-way and other 
property rights are transferred to SCDOT after completion of the Projects. 

26

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 4 of 27 
 
 

 
E. The cost of the Projects shall be borne solely by Beaufort County unless additional funding 

is secured through SCDOT, other sources, or as otherwise provided for in this Agreement. 
 

F. The Parties agree that, because the Projects are not SCDOT projects, the consent of 
municipalities in which the work occurs is not required under S.C. Code Ann. §57-5-820.  
Should a court of competent jurisdiction rule that such consent is required, it will be the 
responsibility of County to obtain the same. 

 
 
V. GENERAL PROVISIONS: 
 

A. Conformance: 
 
The Projects shall be developed and constructed to SCDOT standards and specifications, 
and any other applicable legal standards.  The current edition of each standard and 
specification shall be the edition as of the beginning of the design work for each Project 
with the expectation that the standards and specifications shall be applicable through the 
completion of the Project.  However, where there is a significant delay in the completion 
of the design of a Project, the most current standards and specifications may be 
incorporated into the contract documents.  It is the intent of both County and SCDOT to 
design the Projects in compliance with the applicable standards and specifications; 
however, both Parties recognize that exceptions to these standards and specifications may 
be mutually beneficial.  Such exceptions will be granted if both Parties agree in writing. 
 
County acknowledges that the Buy America provisions apply to all contracts within the 
scope of a National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) determination and eligible for 
assistance under Title 23 U.S. Code, so long as one such contract is funded with federal 
aid. 
 
If federal funds are used, County shall administer all phases of the federally-funded Project 
in compliance with the SCDOT / Federal Highway Administration STEWARDSHIP AND 
OVERSIGHT PLAN dated June 2014 and any revisions, addenda, or other modifications 
thereto (included herein by reference), located on SCDOT’s website at 
www.scdot.org/doing/stewardship.aspx.  Pursuant to this Stewardship and Oversight Plan, 
FHWA retains approval and oversight authority for all phases of the Project, and may 
require documentation and activities not expressly mentioned in this Agreement. 

 
B. Planning and Environmental Activities: 

 
County shall make a determination as to the exact scope of the proposed improvement(s). 
In this planning phase, County shall consider the following aspects of each Project in 
determining the scope of the proposed improvement(s): 

 
• Public involvement 

27

Item 9.

http://www.scdot.org/doing/stewardship.aspx


IGA-3-24 
 

Page 5 of 27 
 
 

• Source of funding (does the Project utilize federal funds or not) 
• Environmental  considerations including determination of necessary environmental 

documentation 
• Traffic requirements for each Project based on traffic projections for the design 

year 20 years beyond the scheduled construction date of the Project. For example, 
a scheduled construction start in 2020 would require design year traffic projections 
for the year 2040. Where available, the Lowcountry Area Transportation Study / 
Lowcountry Council of Governments (LATS / LCOG) traffic projections would be 
supplied by SCDOT for use in these planning activities. In instances where these 
LATS / LCOG traffic projections are not available, County will make traffic 
projections based on standard industry methodology for the appropriate design year 
as indicated above. 

• Right-of-way to encompass all facility improvements 
• Decision by County whether County or SCDOT will issue all Utility Agreements 

and No Cost Letters  
• Determination of any railroad involvement on each Project and a recommendation 

as to the involvement by SCDOT with regard to agreements, drawing reviews, 
coordination, etc. 

• Constructability 
• Other issues impacting the planning and execution of the work as deemed 

appropriate and beneficial to County 
 

County will carry out their work and services in compliance with all applicable Federal, 
State, and local environmental laws and regulations, and shall monitor and oversee the 
Project for such compliance.  This responsibility shall include: 

 
1. Complying with those stipulations and conditions under which SCDOT received 

approval of applicable environmental documents and permits.  Individual permits 
issued by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) will be signed over to 
County.  If County will be responsible for letting a Project, the Notice of Intent 
(NOI) will be signed and submitted by County. 
 

2. County will ensure compliance with all secured permits.  The permittee will be 
responsible for Project compliance.  If SCDOT is required to inspect a Project for 
compliance, either through the use of SCDOT staff or consultants, County is 
responsible for reimbursing SCDOT for the cost of inspection.  SCDOT is 
authorized to use the appropriate Project charge code for all compliance activities.  
County will be the sole party responsible for resolution of any enforcement actions 
as a result of non-compliance with permit conditions and requirements to the extent 
that County or its agents were responsible for such breach or action causing the 
enforcement action. 

 
3. Complying with applicable laws and regulations relating to potential or actual 

hazardous materials that may be encountered in the course of implementing a 
Project. 

28

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 6 of 27 
 
 

 
4. Carrying out all required social, economic, and environmental studies required by 

law. 
 
5. Making all necessary modifications to approved permits as required by law.  If 

SCDOT is still the permittee, any modifications will be submitted to SCDOT’s 
Environmental Office for review and approval prior to submittal to the appropriate 
regulatory agency.  In the event a USACE Individual Permit is required, SCDOT 
will sign over any and all individual permits to County. 
 

County recognizes that SCDOT and/or the FHWA or other agencies may have final review 
and approval for the environmental documentation required under the implementing 
regulations of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, 23 C.F.R. §771, et seq.  
County will be responsible for the preparation of any necessary permit applications 
required by any governmental agency to complete the Project and will work with SCDOT 
in coordinating and negotiating with the agency to secure the permits.  County and their 
consultant must coordinate with the SCDOT Environmental Permitting Division when 
submitting a USACE 404 Permit application.  Additionally, all coordination with USACE 
and SCDHEC is to occur through SCDOT’s Environmental Permitting Division.  All work 
performed must be in accordance with SCDOT’s Environmental Consultant Scope, latest 
edition, and any amendments thereto, if applicable.  Where necessary, County shall prepare 
all permit applications in the name of SCDOT.  County will comply with any regulatory 
agency requirements, and be responsible for resolution of any enforcement actions that 
may arise as a result of non-compliance with regulatory agency requirements.  All permit 
conditions set by the regulatory agencies must be reviewed and approved by SCDOT for 
all roads in, or to be included in, the state system. 
 
County must provide an assessment of potential jurisdictional impacts for each Project 
within 180 days of the execution of this Agreement to the SCDOT Environmental 
Mitigation Manager.  County will coordinate, throughout Project development, with the 
SCDOT Environmental Office to develop a strategy that meets County’s needs and assists 
in streamlining permit acquisition.  County is responsible for developing a conceptual 
mitigation plan if the Project requires compensation for unavoidable impacts.  This plan 
may be submitted to the Environmental Mitigation Manager for review prior to any 
submittal of a 404 permit application to USACE.  County should not assume they will have 
access to SCDOT mitigation banks.  Access to SCDOT mitigation banks will be 
determined by SCDOT’s Mitigation Manager. 
 
County shall conduct required public involvement meetings for the Projects in accordance 
with NEPA regulations, or as otherwise specified by SCDOT.  In addition, non-mandatory 
public meetings may be held to discuss Project issues if desired by County.  County shall 
notify representatives of SCDOT in advance of all meetings and shall notify other 
representatives from state, federal, and resource agencies as required.  The Projects shall 
not be advanced to right-of-way acquisition and/or construction phases until final approval 
of environmental documentation is obtained. 

29

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 7 of 27 
 
 

 
SCDOT and County both recognize that the FHWA will not take any action on projects 
that are funded solely by local sources.  In order for FHWA to review and approve NEPA 
documents, the project must include federal funds in the STIP and/or the fiscally 
constrained portion of the Long Range Transportation Plan.  County must also adhere to 
the transportation planning process in 23 CFR 450 for how to apply federal funds to a 
Project.  If County decides to add federal money to a Project late in the development 
process, the Parties acknowledge that certain steps in the process may need to be repeated 
to ensure federal eligibility. 

 
C. Design Activities: 

 
Design of the Project will be County’s responsibility except as otherwise provided for in 
this Agreement.  Regardless of funding sources, FHWA may, in its discretion, retain any 
specific approval or related activity for the Project.   

 
1. SCDOT shall assign a Project Identification Number to each Project for tracking 

purposes.  County shall use these numbers on all right-of-way instruments, plans, 
and permits as applicable. 

 
2. All Project surveys related to the setting of horizontal control, vertical control, 

mapping, and aerial photography will comply with SCDOT’s current edition of the 
“Preconstruction Survey Manual.” 

 
3. All structural components of the Projects shall comply with the “AASHTO 

Standard Specifications for Highway Bridges,” latest edition, including the latest 
Interim Specifications thereto.  Bridge structures shall be designed with the LRFD 
criteria. This will include all seismic requirements in accordance with these 
AASHTO criteria. 

 
4. Upon completion of the work, County shall certify that the contract documents have 

been prepared in conformance with the provisions of Items 1, 2, and 3 above.  
County shall require that all construction plans and specifications be sealed by a 
South Carolina registered professional engineer. 

 
5. If County has federal funds programmed in either the STIP or Long Range 

Transportation Plan, County shall comply will all applicable federal and state 
statutes and regulations to maintain the eligibility of those funds for reimbursement. 

 
6. In the event that state or federal funding becomes available for a Project, and in the 

event that County should desire to utilize these funds, the Parties shall cooperate 
with regard to amendments to this Agreement that may be required to secure that 
funding.  Such amendments will provide for policies and procedures including 
direct SCDOT administration or assistance with administration of the Project that 
would be most advantageous in securing that funding. 

30

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 8 of 27 
 
 

 
7. If County starts a Project without federal funds and then later seeks to add federal 

funds to the Project, County acknowledges that some steps in the process (NEPA) 
may need to be redone to ensure eligibility. 

 
8. SCDOT’s Office of Materials and Research shall approve the pavement design on 

roads within or intended for the state system and shall respond to County within 30 
business days from the time County submits the pavement design for review.  
Approval of pavement designs on state maintained roadways require the SCDOT 
Pavement Design Engineer’s signature on the typical sections of the final 
construction plans.  Any changes to this pavement design must be reviewed and 
approved by the SCDOT Pavement Design Engineer. 

 
9. SCDOT will provide reviews of the design plans and other contract documents and 

will provide written comments to County.  Plans or other design documentation 
will be sent to SCDOT at the following stages of each Project:  design criteria, 
concept (optional), preliminary right-of-way, and final design.  County shall submit 
the design in a form that is acceptable to SCDOT’s reviewer.  Design reviews will 
be accomplished by SCDOT and review comments will be returned to County 
within 30 business days from the time County submits the review documents to 
SCDOT.  County will notify SCDOT at least two weeks in advance of the 
submission of documents to be reviewed.  Projects shall not be advanced to right-
of-way or construction until written authorization is provided by SCDOT. 

 
10. Design plans and documents submitted to SCDOT for reviews shall be provided in 

electronic (.pdf) format.  County shall utilize file transfer protocol (FTP) or other 
agreed upon platform to transfer the documents to be reviewed. 
 

11. During the development of design of the Projects, consideration should be given to 
costs associated with long-term maintenance of items incorporated into the 
Projects.  SCDOT reserves the right to request alternative solutions that would 
present lower long-term maintenance costs. 

 
12. SCDOT’s written “authority to proceed” with right-of-way acquisition activities 

shall serve as approval for County to begin right-of-way activities on each Project.  
SCDOT agrees to provide written notice of “authority to proceed” or review 
comments for the right-of-way plans within 25 business days from the time County 
submits the right-of-way plans for review. 

 
13. SCDOT’s written “authority to proceed” with construction shall serve as approval 

of right of entry and encroachment on to SCDOT’s right-of-way for construction 
of a Project by County.  SCDOT agrees to provide written notice of “authority to 
proceed” or review comments for the final plans within 25 business days from the 
time County submits the final plans for review. 

 

31

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 9 of 27 
 
 

14. In the event that federal funding is sought by County through SCDOT, County shall 
perform a value engineering analysis as required by 23 C.F.R. Part 627. 

 
D. Utility Activities: 

 
1. All utility coordination and relocation activities shall be in accordance with 23 

C.F.R. 645 and SCDOT’s “A Policy for Accommodating Utilities on Highway 
Rights of Way,” and other applicable State law. 
 

2. Utility relocations will be paid based on prior rights and applicable state law.  
Where a utility establishes a prior right of occupancy in its existing location, County 
will be responsible for the cost of that relocation, including all real and actual costs 
associated (engineering, easements, construction, inspections, etc.).  Prior Rights 
may be established by the following means: 

 
a. The utility holds a fee, an easement, or other real property interest, the 

taking of which is compensable in eminent domain. 
 
b. The utility occupies SCDOT right-of-way through an existing agreement 

with SCDOT and is not required to relocate at its own expense. 
 

3. Where the utility cannot establish a prior right of occupancy, the utility will be 
required to relocate at its own expense.  However, in some cases for not-for-profit 
utilities, County may elect to use Program funds for all or part of such utility 
relocation costs.  In such cases, federal funds would not be eligible for 
reimbursement. 

 
4. Utility work will be coordinated and executed in accordance with SCDOT’s Design 

Manual and Construction Manual. 
 
5. If federal funds are used for any development or construction contract within the 

scope of the NEPA determination, the Buy America provisions apply to all utility 
relocations that are otherwise eligible for federal aid reimbursement, regardless of 
whether federal funds are actually used. 

 
6. Utilities to remain in SCDOT rights-of-way, or to be relocated to a point within 

SCDOT rights-of-way, shall be in compliance with SCDOT’s “A Policy for 
Accommodating Utilities on Highway Rights of Way.” 
 

7. County will honor the terms of any pre-existing agreements between SCDOT and 
a utility owner. 

 
8. County shall comply with Act 36 of 2019, as codified in S.C. Code Section 57-5-

880 for relocation of public water and sewer utilities.  
 

32

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 10 of 27 
 
 

9. County will provide utility deliverables as defined in Section VI.E. 
 

10. County will provide a Utility Certification in a form acceptable to SCDOT insuring 
that all utility relocation agreements, letters, and relocation plans necessary for 
construction of each Project have been secured and provide the schedule for 
relocation work. 

 
E. Railroad Activities: 

 
1. County shall coordinate with the operating Railroad(s) during the planning phase 

of Project development to discuss the Railroad’s requirements and future plans at 
that location. 

 
2. County shall solicit comments early in the design process from Railroad(s) by 

providing an overview map, description of the Projects, and railroad milepost.  
Railroad company and milepost information can be found on a sign at the crossing 
of the railroad and the roadway.  Information such as train data, passenger 
operations, valuation maps (VAL Maps) of railroad right-of-way, future track and 
utility road requirements, and any other special considerations not described in 
Railroad(s) general criteria, etc. shall be discussed with the Railroad(s).  County 
shall also, as instructed by the Railroad(s), submit plans and correspondence to 
Railroad(s) for engineering review / approval and subsequent development of 
Railroad Force Account Costs.  County shall assist in drafting and executing 
required Railroad agreements.  Understanding the Railroad(s) requirements, 
process, review schedules, and costs early is crucial to the success of the Project. 

 
3. County, or County’s consultant, shall obtain all necessary Railroad(s) Right-of-

Entry permits which may be required for survey, subsurface utility engineering 
(SUE), geotechnical operations, etc.  Upon permit approval and as instructed by the 
Railroad(s), County shall coordinate with Railroad(s) flagman and engineering 
representative during times when field operations shall be occurring within the 
Railroad(s) right-of-way. 

 
4. If a Project involves an SCDOT maintained roadway, County shall coordinate with 

SCDOT’s Railroad Projects office, located within SCDOT’s Right-of-Way 
Department.  During the Project’s planning phase, SCDOT and County shall 
discuss the necessity of a Tri-Party Agreement and other joint requirements. 

 
5. County shall reimburse Railroad(s) for all work performed by or on behalf of the 

Railroad(s) in support of a Project. 
 
6. County, and County’s consultants and contractors, shall retain all records pertaining 

to the Projects for three years after completion and acceptance of the Project.  All 
such records shall be made available to SCDOT for review and audit upon request. 
 

33

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 11 of 27 
 
 

7. County will provide a Railroad Certification in a form acceptable to SCDOT 
insuring that all railroad coordination is complete and all railroad agreements have 
been secured for construction of the Projects. 

 
F. Right-of-Way Acquisition Activities: 

  
1. County shall acquire all right-of-way necessary for highway purposes in its own 

name.  Acquisition of rights-of-way to be turned over to SCDOT and rights-of-way 
for projects that may or will be made using federal funds shall be acquired in 
accordance with the United States Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real 
Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended, P.L. 91-646, 42 U.S.C. 
§§4601 et seq., regulations thereunder including 49 C.F.R. Part 24, the South 
Carolina Eminent Domain Procedures Act, and SCDOT’s Office of Right of Way 
Acquisition Manual.  Title instruments acquired for this Project to be conveyed to 
SCDOT shall be documented on standard SCDOT right-of-way forms.  Right-of-
way limits shall be set according to standard SCDOT practices, utilizing the 
SCDOT Highway Design Manual and the SCDOT Road Design Plan Preparation 
Guide.  These limits shall encompass all pertinent highway facilities and structures 
necessary for the construction and maintenance of the roadway.   

 
With respect to the acquisitions: 

 
County Shall: 

 
a. Acquire right-of-way in fee simple title or easement interest as directed by 

SCDOT. 
 

b. Perform title searches for each property to be acquired and provide SCDOT 
with Certificates of Title signed by an attorney licensed to practice in South 
Carolina.  Preliminary title abstracts must be provided prior to property being 
appraised. 

 
c. In accordance with and when required by SCDOT’s Appraisal Manual, provide 

an acceptable appraisal for each tract by an appraiser from SCDOT’s approved 
appraisal list.  All contracts for appraisals shall obligate the appraiser to provide 
court testimony in the event of condemnation.  County shall obtain appraisal 
reviews complying with technical review guidelines of the Appraisal Manual 
and make a recommendation of just compensation.  The appraisal reviewer shall 
be approved by SCDOT.  The reviewed appraisal must be approved by 
SCDOT’s right-of-way representative prior to the offer to purchase being made 
to the Landowner. 

 
d. Secure approval from SCDOT’s right-of-way representative for any settlement 

above the approved appraisal if federal funds are utilized on a Project. 
 

34

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 12 of 27 
 
 

e. Titles shall be in fee simple absolute by recordable warranty deeds unless 
otherwise approved by SCDOT.  All titles shall be recorded in the land records 
of Beaufort County. 

 
f. In the event of condemnation, the necessary documents as required by the 

Eminent Domain Procedures Act, S.C. Code Ann. §§ 28-2-10 et seq., will be 
prepared and County will utilize its Eminent Domain authority to acquire title.  
County shall be responsible for securing legal representation familiar with 
Eminent Domain in South Carolina.  Condemnation shall be by way of trial 
after rejection of the amount tendered as provided in S.C. Code § 28-2-240. 

 
g. Retain all records dealing with property acquisition and all other costs 

associated with the Project for three years after the “Final Acceptance Date” of 
each Project by SCDOT.  County or its authorized representative will make 
such records available for audit and review upon request.  

 
h. County is responsible for establishing and maintaining Quality Control and 

Quality Assurance procedures for the entire right-of-way acquisition process. 
 
i. Provide relocation assistance in accordance with SCDOT’s Relocation Manual.  

All relocation housing payment offers shall be approved by SCDOT prior to 
being offered to displacees.  County shall issue 90 and 30 - day notices of 
displacement in accordance with State and federal guidelines. 

 
j. County shall be responsible for the disposition of all identified improvements 

being acquired on each Project prior to the obligation date of the construction.  
 

k. Establish specific milestone dates for the different phases of the right-of-way 
acquisition and provide bi-monthly reports indicating the status of each 
individual parcel. 

 
l. Provide a Right-of-Way Certification in a form acceptable to SCDOT ensuring 

that all property necessary for construction of each Project has been secured 
and that all displacees have been relocated prior to advertising for construction 
bids. 
 

m. At the completion of each Project, County shall prepare a ROW exhibit and 
master deed reflecting the rights-of-way to be conveyed to SCDOT as a part of 
the Project.  These documents must be prepared and submitted prior to or at 
Project close-out. 

 
SCDOT Shall: 

 
a. Designate a representative from the Right-of-Way office to approve offers of 

just compensation as well as any settlements above the approved appraisal 

35

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 13 of 27 
 
 

amounts, participate in mediation of legal settlements, and coordinate and 
provide approval for all relocation benefits for displaced persons or businesses. 

 
b. Provide approval of the Right-of-Way Certification and authorization to 

proceed to construction. 
 

G. Construction Activities: 
 

1. County shall include the required Federal Aid contract provisions in the contract and 
shall coordinate with SCDOT to establish a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) 
goal if a Project is federally funded. 
 

2. County shall obtain SCDOT concurrence prior to awarding the construction contract. 
 

3. County will construct the Projects in conformance with the technical sections of 
SCDOT’s current Standard Specifications for Highway Construction, Supplemental 
Specifications, Supplemental Technical Specifications, Standard Drawings, the Access 
and Roadside Management Standards (ARMS), and related AASHTO standards in 
effect at the time of each Project letting unless otherwise agreed to by SCDOT and 
County in accordance with Section V.A. of this Agreement.  County will apply ARMS 
requirements to the construction effort and to the relocation of utilities within the 
SCDOT right-of-way.  County must obtain written approval from SCDOT if there will 
be any significant deviation from the construction contract documents. 
 

4. To the extent applicable, materials and services shall be procured in accordance with  
Beaufort County Procurement Procedures, S.C. Code Ann. §§ 11-35- 10 et seq., 
SCDOT standard policies, applicable Federal statutes and regulations (2 C.F.R. Part 
200, 23 C.F.R. Parts 172 and 635), and State statutes and regulations. 
 

5. County shall provide administrative, contract management, Quality Acceptance 
testing, inspection, and other services sufficient to provide certification to SCDOT that 
the construction and the materials used for construction are in conformance with the 
plans and specifications set forth in the contract documents.  The inspectors and 
engineers performing Quality Acceptance testing and inspection on the Project shall be 
SCDOT certified in the area of testing and inspection being performed.  All acceptance 
sampling and testing shall be performed in accordance with the quality control (QC) 
sampling and testing schedule and frequency specified in SCDOT’s Construction 
Manual.  The engineer of record may not also provide Construction Engineering and 
Inspection services on State-maintained facilities. 
 

6. County shall obtain SCDOT concurrence to accept material that does not conform to 
contract requirements.  Such concurrence shall be documented by the use of SCDOT 
Form 100.09, and must be approved by the SCDOT District Engineering Administrator 
and SCDOT’s Director of Construction.  The request for concurrence must be initiated 

36

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 14 of 27 
 
 

by County to SCDOT no later than 45 days after incorporation of the non-conforming 
material into the Project. 
 

7. SCDOT shall conduct construction oversight, to include sampling and testing of 
materials, on all State-maintained roadways at the discretion of the Deputy Secretary 
for Engineering.  All SCDOT costs associated with construction oversight shall be 
reimbursed by County in accordance with Section IV.C. of this Agreement. 
 

8. SCDOT will perform independent assurance (IA) sampling and testing on Projects with 
federal funding. 
 

9. The Projects may be subject to periodic reviews/inspections by SCDOT’s Quality 
Management Team and the Environmental Compliance Team at SCDOT’s discretion. 

 
10. To facilitate the coordination of construction activities and to ensure that the work is 

constructed in accordance with the applicable provisions, County and SCDOT agree as 
follows: 

 
a. Weekly Project field reviews will be made by both County’s and SCDOT’s 

construction representatives to discuss Project status, mutual concerns, and 
construction issues. 
 

b. Contract documents will be furnished to SCDOT. 
 

c. Copies of test results will be submitted to SCDOT so test data and results can 
be evaluated.  Periodic reviews of test reports and summaries may be made by 
SCDOT. 
 

d. Copies of Daily Work Reports, Diaries, Meeting Minutes, and all documents 
associated with the Construction Management of the Projects shall be provided 
to SCDOT upon request. 
 

e. Project traffic control reviews for safety and specification compliance will be 
made and documented on SCDOT Form 600.02 by County or their agent.  
Daytime reviews shall be conducted at least once per week, and nighttime 
inspections will be performed at least once per month. 
 

f. Erosion control reviews will be made on a schedule as required in the NPDES 
General Construction Permit.  Erosion Control reviews will be made in 
accordance with the latest edition of SCDOT’s Supplemental Specification on 
Seeding and Erosion Control Measures.  Observations will be documented on 
SCDOT’s Erosion Control form 800.02.  County will apply for and acquire all 
necessary permits, to include the NPDES General Construction Permit in the 
name of County unless otherwise agreed upon by SCDOT and County.  County 
will comply with any NPDES requirements, and be responsible for resolution 

37

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 15 of 27 
 
 

of any enforcement actions that may arise as a result of non-compliance with 
NPDES requirements. 

 
11. When all aspects of a Project have been properly and fully performed and the work is 

substantially complete, County shall coordinate with SCDOT to establish a date for 
final inspection of the work.  County, SCDOT, and the prime contractor shall jointly 
conduct the final inspection and develop a Final Project Punch-list.  County shall 
require that any deficiencies identified on the Final Project Punch-list are appropriately 
addressed in a timely manner and shall advise SCDOT in writing of the completion of 
any corrective action.  The date of this notice shall become the date of Final 
Completion. 

 
VI. OTHER PROVISIONS: 
 

A. Maintenance of Traffic: 
 

County shall require that its contractors keep all existing State highways open to traffic 
while they are undergoing improvements, except for temporary construction detours or 
closures.  Additionally, County shall be responsible for maintaining the entire section or 
sections of highway within the limits of the Project area from the time its construction 
contractor is issued the Notice to Proceed until the time the Project is delivered to SCDOT 
under the terms of this Agreement.  Traffic control activities shall be in accordance with 
the MUTCD (current edition), the SCDOT District 6 Daytime Lane Closure policy (current 
edition), and SCDOT’s standard guidelines and standard drawings for maintenance of 
traffic in a work zone.  Traffic control plans will be required for all types of lane closures, 
shoulder closures, and detours. 

 
B. Maintenance of Projects: 

 
County shall accept responsibility for normal maintenance of the roadway within the 
Project limits during construction. 

 
C. Tie-in Agreements: 

 
Where the limits of a Project meet or overlap into the project limits established for projects 
that are or will be executed by SCDOT before the completion of this Project, County and 
SCDOT will develop agreements to outline provisions that would be beneficial to both 
County projects and SCDOT projects with respect to funding, traffic control, improved 
safety for the traveling public, coordination of drainage systems, or other design or 
construction considerations.  These agreements will stipulate the funding implications of 
such provisions and the responsible parties thereof. 

 
D. Encroachment Rights: 

 

38

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 16 of 27 
 
 

SCDOT shall deliver possession of its highways to County in the same manner and under 
the same terms it does to highway contractors working under contract with SCDOT, and 
hereby grants encroachment and access rights to the right-of-way and easements along the 
proposed Project corridors as set forth below. This possession shall be delivered after 
approval of the final construction plans as outlined below. 

 
1. When a construction contract has been awarded by County, County will notify SCDOT 

of the anticipated Notice to Proceed date for the contract.  After written approval of the 
final construction plans by SCDOT as outlined in Section V.C.9 of this Agreement and 
on the Notice to Proceed date for construction, County and/or its agents will assume 
maintenance responsibilities for the Project. 
 

2. Where applications for encroachment permits with regard to any segment of road 
covered by a Project are received by SCDOT, SCDOT will forward those applications 
to County within 10 business days of receipt for review to ensure that those proposed 
improvements described in the permit applications will not conflict with the Project 
plans.  County shall review the applications and return comments within 15 business 
days. 
 

3. From the time of execution of this Agreement up to Project completion, SCDOT hereby 
grants County access to the Project corridors for the purposes of gathering field 
information necessary for accomplishing the planning, design, and right-of-way 
aspects of the Projects.  County will publish an Eminent Domain notice for each Project 
in accordance with the Eminent Domain Act, SC Code Section 28-2-70(C). 

 
E. Acceptance: 

 
In the event that additional centerline miles are created by the Projects, the Projects will be 
presented by SCDOT staff to the SCDOT Commission upon Final Completion, as defined by 
Section V.G.11 of this Agreement.  The Commission will determine if the additional mileage is to 
be accepted by SCDOT.  In the event that additional miles of secondary roads are added to the 
State Highway System as a result of a Project, an equal mileage of existing roads on the State 
Highway System in Beaufort County will be turned over to County for maintenance.  The exact 
roads to be exchanged will be as mutually agreed between County and SCDOT.   
 
Upon completion of each Project, County shall submit a Project Closure Checklist, attached hereto 
as Attachment C, including the following Project documentation to SCDOT.   

 
1. Copies of required environmental documents 

 
2. Design documents 

a. As described elsewhere in this agreement 
b. Final Project plans suitable for delivery and recording pursuant to S.C. Code §57-

5-570 and in accordance with the current version of SCDOT’s As-Built 
Construction Plans Supplemental Specification 

39

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 17 of 27 
 
 

c. Electronic files of the Final Project plans as described in SCDOT’s “Road Design 
Reference Material for Consultant Prepared Plans” 

d. Final Stormwater Reports 
 

3. Right-of-way documents 
a. Appraisals 
b. Title search information 
c. Deeds sufficient to convey the additional highway right-of-way acquired by County 

to SCDOT.  Titles shall be by special warranty and sufficient to convey the entire 
interest obtained by County from the Landowner. 

d. Correspondence with property owners 
e. Master exhibit prepared by the engineer of record outlining the rights-of-way to be 

conveyed to SCDOT 
f. Diaries or agents’ worksheets related to the acquisition of right-of-way 
g. All Utility Agreements and No Cost Letters with supporting documentation 
h. Summary sheet showing all payments made by County against each Utility 

Agreement 
i. If applicable, all supporting information for cost increases to Utility Agreements 

 
4. Construction documents 

a. As-built drawings - In addition to those documents set forth elsewhere in this 
Agreement, County shall provide, within 90 days after Final Completion, two 
marked-up sets of final construction drawings reflecting the as-built condition of 
the Project based on information provided by the construction contractor and 
verified by County.  “As-built” plans must be drawn to scale, and be based on the 
project survey stationing.  These plans will include as-built information for utilities.  
These plans will be sufficient to establish the precise location of all utilities and 
appurtenances as well as provide key information for future determination of the 
extent of prior rights.  “As-built” utility plans must include at a minimum the 
following: 
• Survey centerline and existing roadway centerline if different, with labeled 

stationing. 
• Existing and new right-of-way lines, and County easement lines 
• Final location of utility lines and appurtenances 

b. Test reports 
c. Daily construction diaries 

  
5. Other documents 

a. Assignments to SCDOT of all contractors’ payment and performance bonds in 
connection with the Project and a copy of the Consents of Surety for final payment 

b. Releases, affidavits, or other proof of payment to indicate full payment of all claims 
by contractors, their subcontractors, or suppliers. 

c. For federally funded projects with a DBE goal, a DBE closeout document obtained 
from SCDOT’s Office of Business Development 

 

40

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 18 of 27 
 
 

SCDOT shall accept the Project and assume responsibility for maintenance of the Project upon 
receipt of County’s submittal of the Project Closure Checklist signed by the representative of 
County and upon SCDOT’s review and signature approval of the Checklist.   
 
County shall be responsible for maintenance of specialized or unique features, enhancements, or 
nonstandard materials that are incorporated into the Project, such as, but not limited to:  noise 
walls, sidewalks wider than five (5) feet, shared use paths, hardscape treatments, landscaping, 
lighting, mast arms, and street furniture. 
 
A separate Maintenance Agreement between the Parties will address specific maintenance 
responsibilities for any special features, enhancements, or nonstandard materials incorporated into 
the Projects. 
 
 

F. Warranty: 
 

1. County warrants that it will perform the work necessary under this Agreement in 
accordance with the standards of care and diligence normally practiced in the 
transportation industry for work of similar nature.  To the extent County’s construction 
contractor warranties are obtained in connection with the Project intended to be turned 
over to SCDOT, County shall ensure that those warranties are assignable. 
 

2. County shall take all steps necessary to transfer to SCDOT any manufacturer or other 
third party warranties of any materials or other services used in the construction of the 
Project. 

 
VII. Miscellaneous General Provisions: 
 

A. Disputes: 
 

County and SCDOT shall cooperate and consult with each other with respect to the Projects 
intended to be turned over to SCDOT for maintenance to the extent set forth herein.  The 
Parties may utilize the Issues Escalation and Dispute Resolution Process included as 
Attachment “B” to determine the appropriate person(s) and timeframe to resolve any issues 
that may arise.  In the event that a dispute arises, the following procedures will be used to 
resolve the matter. 
 
Any dispute or claim arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be submitted for 
resolution under the procedures outlined in Attachment “B.”  Within 90 days of the date of 
this Agreement, an ad hoc board designated as the Dispute Resolution Board, will be 
selected pursuant to the procedures identified below.  The Dispute Resolution Board will 
be composed of two members from County and two members from SCDOT.  These four 
members shall choose a fifth member employed neither by County nor SCDOT.  This fifth 
member shall be a mediator certified in the State of South Carolina.  The cost for the 
mediator shall be shared equally between County and SCDOT.  The Board shall be 

41

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 19 of 27 
 
 

empanelled for the entire duration of this Agreement and shall hear all disputes between 
County and SCDOT relating to this Agreement that cannot be resolved through the normal 
resolution process outlined in the Issues Escalation chart.  In the event this process does 
not produce a resolution, the Parties may seek redress from the Court of Common Pleas for 
Beaufort County.  Any court proceedings shall be non-jury.  Exhaustion of this Dispute 
Resolution Process is a condition precedent to seeking a legal or equitable remedy.   

 
B. Successors/Assigns: 

 
County and SCDOT each bind themselves and their respective successors, executors, 
administrators, and assigns to the other Party with respect to these requirements, and also 
agree that neither Party shall assign, sublet, or transfer its interest in the Agreement without 
the written consent of the other. 

 
C. Disadvantaged Business Enterprises: 

 
County will provide opportunities for Disadvantaged Business Enterprises as required by 
state laws and regulations.  County will coordinate with SCDOT’s DBE Office when 
establishing goals for the Projects.  The Parties hereto and their agents shall not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this 
Agreement or the work provided for herein.  Where required, the Parties hereto and their 
agents shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 C.F.R. Part 26 in the administration of 
this Agreement. 

 
D. Enforceability: 

 
All of the terms, provisions, and conditions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and 
enforceable by the Parties, their respective elected officials, legal representatives, agents, 
employees, and their respective successors. 

 
E. Amendment: 

 
This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written document, which has been 
signed by the Parties hereto, or by their duly authorized officials.  County, or its authorized 
agent, shall agree to hold consultations with SCDOT as may be necessary with regard to 
the execution of supplements, modifications, or amendments to this Agreement during the 
course of the Projects for the purpose of resolving any items that may have been 
unintentionally omitted from this Agreement or arise from unforeseen events or conditions.  
Such supplemental agreements shall be subject to the approval and proper execution of the 
Parties hereto.  No supplements, modifications, or amendments to this Agreement shall be 
effective or binding upon either Party unless both Parties agree in writing to any such 
changes. 

 
F. Termination: 

 

42

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 20 of 27 
 
 

This Agreement may be terminated by County upon written notice to SCDOT, provided 
that County covers all costs incurred prior to termination and as the result of termination, 
including any required repayment of federal funds.  If County fails to advance a Project to 
completion, SCDOT may terminate the Agreement upon written notice and County shall 
be responsible for all costs incurred prior to termination and as the result of termination, 
including any required repayment of federal funds.   
 

G. Waiver: 
  

No waiver of a breach of any of the covenants, promises, or provisions contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed as a waiver of any succeeding breach of the same covenant 
or promise or any other covenant or promise thereof.  In no event shall any failure by either 
Party hereto to fully enforce any provision of this Agreement be construed as a waiver by 
such Party of its right to subsequently enforce, assert, or rely upon such provision. 

 
H. Severability: 

 
In the event that any part or provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid 
or unenforceable, the remaining parts and provisions which can be separated from the 
invalid or unenforceable provision or provisions shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
I. Captions: 

 
The captions or headings herein are for convenience only and in no way define, limit, or 
describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement. 

 
J. Notices: 

 
All notices pertaining to this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed as set forth 
below, and shall be deemed properly delivered, given, or served when:  (i) personally 
delivered, or (ii) sent by overnight courier, or (iii) three days have elapsed following the 
date mailed by certified or registered mail, postage prepaid. 

 
Notices to County: 

Beaufort County Government 
Attn.:  County Engineer 
2266 Boundary Street 
Beaufort, South Carolina 29902 
 

Notices to SCDOT: 
South Carolina Department of Transportation  
Attn.:  Deputy Secretary for Engineering 
PO Box 191 
Columbia, South Carolina 29202 

 

43

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 21 of 27 
 
 

K. Further Documents: 
 

Each Party will, whenever and as often as it shall be requested by the other Party, promptly 
and within a reasonable time, execute, acknowledge, and deliver, or cause to be executed, 
acknowledged, and delivered such further instruments or documents as may be necessary 
to carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement. 

 
L. Assignment: 

 
This Agreement may not be assigned by either Party without the written consent of the 
other Party, unless otherwise provided by applicable law. 

 
M. No Third-party Beneficiaries: 

 
No rights in any Third-party are created by this Agreement, and no entity not a party to this 
Agreement may rely on any aspect of this Agreement, notwithstanding any representation, 
written or oral, to the contrary, made by any person or entity.  The Parties hereto 
affirmatively represent that this Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Parties 
hereto and their respective successors and assigns and not for the benefit of any Third-party 
who is not a signature party hereto.  No party other than the signature Parties and their 
respective successors and assigns hereto shall have any enforceable rights hereunder, or 
have any right to the enforcement hereof, or any claim for damages as a result of any 
alleged breach hereof. 

 
N. Multiple Counterparts: 

 
This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, and if so executed, shall become 
effective when a counterpart has been executed and delivered by both Parties hereto.  All 
counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement and shall be fully 
enforceable as such.  Delivery of counterparts via facsimile transmission or via email with 
scanned attachment shall be effective as if originals thereof were delivered. 

  
O. Prior Agreements, Entire Agreement: 

 
All obligations of the Parties, each to the other, relating to the subject matter of this 
Agreement, contained in any other document or agreement or based on any other 
communication prior to the execution of this Agreement have been satisfied or are 
superseded by this Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 
the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. 
 
This Agreement, with the Appendices and Attachments hereto, sets forth the full and 
complete understanding of the Parties as of the date first above stated, and it supersedes 
any and all agreements and representations made or dated prior thereto. 
 

44

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 22 of 27 
 
 

The Parties make no representations, covenants, warranties, or guarantees, express or 
implied, other than those expressly set forth herein. The Parties’ rights, liabilities, 
responsibilities, and remedies with respect to the services provided for in this Agreement 
shall be exclusively those expressly set forth in this Agreement. 
 
This Agreement is to be interpreted under the laws of the State of South Carolina. 

 
P. Reviews and Approvals: 

 
Any and all reviews and approvals required of the Parties herein shall not be unreasonably 
denied, delayed, or withheld. 
 

[Signature blocks on next page] 
 

  

45

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 23 of 27 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties herein have executed this AGREEMENT as of the 
day and year first written above. 
 
SIGNED, SEALED AND DELIVERED 
IN THE PRESENCE OF 

BEAUFORT COUNTY 
 

 
_______________________________ By:______________________________________ 
Witness       (Signature) 
 

Title:_____________________________________ 
 

 
SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF  

 TRANSPORTATION 
 
 
_______________________________ By:______________________________________ 
SCDOT Witness    Secretary of Transportation  
 

RECOMMENDED BY: 
 
      _____________________________________ 

Deputy Secretary for Finance and Administration or  
      Designee 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 

Deputy Secretary for Engineering or  
      Designee 
 
 
 
 
  

46

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 24 of 27 
 
 

Attachment “A”  
List and Description of the Projects 

  

47

Item 9.



Pr
oj

ec
t

Ty
pe

Fu
nd

in
g 

So
ur

ce
De

sc
rip

tio
n

S-
16

3 
(B

ur
nt

 C
hu

rc
h 

Rd
)

W
id

en
in

g
Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

3-
la

ne
 w

id
en

in
g 

w
ith

 b
ic

yc
le

/p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s f
ro

m
 S

-1
3 

(B
rid

ge
St

/A
llj

oy
 R

d)
 to

 B
lu

fft
on

 P
ar

kw
ay

S-
54

9 
(D

et
ou

r R
d)

Pa
th

w
ay

TA
G 

&
 S

ol
ar

 F
ar

m
 

Do
na

tio
n

10
' S

U
P 

fr
om

 C
hi

sh
ol

m
 H

ill
 R

d 
to

 S
-4

2 
(S

ea
br

oo
k 

Rd
)

Tr
ia

ng
le

 P
ro

je
ct

 - 
jo

in
t 

pr
oj

ec
t w

ith
 Ja

sp
er

 C
o 

&
 C

ity
 

of
 H

ar
de

ev
ill

e

W
id

en
in

g,
 A

cc
es

s 
M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
In

te
rc

ha
ng

e 
Im

p.
Ge

ne
ra

l

U
S 

27
8:

 fr
om

 S
C 

17
0 

to
 S

-4
42

 (A
rg

en
t B

lv
d)

SC
 1

70
: f

ro
m

 O
ka

tie
 C

en
te

r B
lv

d 
S 

to
 S

C 
46

2 
(L

ow
co

un
tr

y 
Dr

)
S-

44
2:

 fr
om

 U
S 

27
8 

to
 S

C 
17

0
SC

 2
81

 - 
Re

-im
ag

in
e 

Ri
ba

ul
t 

Rd
 

Co
rr

id
or

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
Fr

om
 U

S 
21

 B
us

 (B
ou

nd
ar

y 
St

) t
o 

Ru
ss

el
l B

el
l B

rid
ge

SC
 1

70
 (O

ka
tie

 H
w

y)
Ac

ce
ss

 M
gm

t

Im
pa

ct
 F

ee
 &

 C
os

t 
sh

ar
e 

w
ith

 
Ha

rd
ee

vi
lle

 &
 Ja

sp
er

 
Co

In
te

rm
ed

ia
te

 p
ro

je
ct

 fo
r a

cc
es

s m
an

ag
em

en
t f

ro
m

 U
S 

27
8 

in
te

rc
ha

ng
e 

to
 T

id
ew

at
ch

 D
r

SC
 4

6 
W

id
en

in
g,

 A
cc

es
s M

gm
t, 

&
 S

af
et

y
Im

pa
ct

 F
ee

Ja
sp

er
 C

o 
to

 B
uc

kw
al

te
r P

kw
y

Ri
ba

ut
 R

d 
(S

C 
28

1)
 &

 L
ad

y'
s 

Is
la

nd
 D

r (
U

S 
21

)
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
TA

G 
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
M

er
id

ia
n 

Rd
/I

sla
nd

 
Ca

us
ew

ay
/L

ad
y'

s I
sla

nd
 D

r
In

te
rs

ec
tio

n 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t
TA

G
Re

al
ig

n 
to

 c
re

at
e 

on
e 

in
te

rs
ec

tio
n

Be
au

fo
rt

 C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
Pr

og
ra

m

U
S 

27
8 

Ph
as

e 
4

W
id

en
in

g
Gu

id
es

ha
re

W
id

en
in

g 
of

 U
S 

27
8 

fr
om

 S
-4

42
 (A

rg
en

t B
lv

d)
 to

 I-
95

 

48

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 25 of 27 
 
 

Attachment “B” 
Issue Escalation and Dispute Resolution Process 

 
The purpose of this process is to define the different levels of management in County and SCDOT 
that have the authority and responsibility to make decisions when lower levels of staff are unable 
to resolve issues that may arise during the life of the Program.  Such issues should be addressed 
promptly in order to minimize delays to the Program and to avoid negative impacts to the Program, 
County, and SCDOT.  County and SCDOT agree that if an issue cannot be resolved by the normal 
process of communications between County or its designee and SCDOT’s Program Manager, the 
following procedure will be adhered to by County and SCDOT.  This diagram describes the 
escalation process, personnel involved, and time limitations for resolution.  Should resolution not 
be reached in the duration listed below, the next level of management will be informed of the issue 
and they will then be responsible to make a decision within the allotted time period as shown 
below.  These allotted time periods may be changed based on mutual agreement of the managers 
working to resolve the issue.  Decisions reached through this process will be recorded in writing 
and signatures of the responsible person from County and SCDOT will sign an acknowledgement 
of the decision made within two days of concluding the decision. 
 

 
 
The Deputy Secretary for Engineering shall review and make the final determination on unresolved 
issues pertaining to right-of-way, design, and construction for routes within or to be added to the 
State Highway System.  Should the County Administrator and the Deputy Secretary for 
Engineering be unable to resolve other issues that may arise during the program, either Party may 
request a resolution by the Dispute Resolution Board that shall hear the matter and reach a 
resolution to the dispute within ten days.  By majority decision of the Board, this ten-day time 
frame to reach a resolution may be amended. 
 
  

SCDOT
(Planning, Design, Right of 

Way Issues)

SCDOT
(Construction issues) County Work Days

PROGRAM MANAGER DISTRICT ENGR. ADMINISTRATOR COUNTY ENGINEER 2

DIRECTOR OR PRECONSTRUCTION DIRECTOR OF CONSTRUCTION
COUNTY ENGINEER / COUNTY 

ADIMINISTRATOR 
3

DEP. SECRETARY FOR 
ENGINEERING

DEP. SECRETARY FOR 
ENGINEERING

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 5

49

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 26 of 27 
 
 

Attachment C 
 

Project Closure Checklist Submitted by Beaufort County 
 (Enter Project Name) 

(Enter Date of Submittal) 
 
 
The following documentation has been provided to SCDOT, in a format acceptable to SCDOT: 
 
County’s Initial 
 

1. Copies of required environmental documents/permits 
a. Report showing NEPA/Permit Commitments complied with 
b. US Army Corps of Engineers Close-out report 
c. Notice of Termination for NPDES Permit 

 
 

 
 

2. Design documents 
a. As described elsewhere in this Agreement 
b. Final Project plans suitable for delivery and recording pursuant to 

S.C. Code §57-5-570 (1991), and in accordance with SCDOT’s As-
Built Construction Plans Supplemental Specification, latest version 

c. Electronic files of the Final Project plans as described in SCDOT’s 
“Road Design Reference Material for Consultant Prepared Plans.” 
 

 
 
 

3. Right of way documents 
 

a. Appraisals 
b. Title search information 
c. Deeds sufficient to convey to the SCDOT the additional highway 

right of way acquired by the Town.  Titles shall be by special 
warranty and sufficient to convey the entire interest obtained by the 
Town from the Landowner. 

d. Correspondence with property owners 
e. Master exhibit prepared by the engineer of record outlining the rights 

of way to be conveyed to SCDOT. 
f. Diaries or agents worksheets related to the acquisition of right of 

way  
g. All Utility Agreements and No Cost Letters with supporting 

documentation. 
h. Summary sheet showing all payments made by the Town against 

each Utility Agreement. 
i. If applicable, all supporting information for cost increases to Utility 

Agreements. 

_________ 

_________ 

__________ 

50

Item 9.



IGA-3-24 
 

Page 27 of 27 
 
 

 
4. Construction documents 
 

a. As-built drawings – As detailed in the IGA. 
b. Test reports 
c. Daily construction diaries 

 
5. Other documents 

a. Assignments to the SCDOT of all contractors’ payment and 
performance bonds in connection with the Project and a copy of the 
Surety’s Consent for final payment.  

b. Releases, affidavits or other proof of payment to indicate full 
payment of all claims by contractors, their subcontractors or 
suppliers. 

c. DBE closeout obtained from SCDOT Office of Business 
Development, if federally funded and the project had a DBE goal. 

 
 
 
This is to certify that results of the tests on job control samples indicate that the materials incorporated 
into the construction work and the construction operation controlled by sampling and testing are in 
reasonably close conformity with the approved plans and specifications, and such results compare 
favorably with the results of record sampling and testing.  SCDOT concurrence was obtained in all 
instances in which materials did not conform to contract requirements. 
 
 
DATED:___________ Beaufort County 
 
 By:___________________________________ 
 
 Its: ___________________________________ 
 
 
DATED:____________ South Carolina Department of Transportation 
 
 

By:___________________________________ 
 
Its: ___________________________________ 

 
 

__________ 

__________ 

51

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A Resolution to accept the Transportation Alternative Set Aside Program Fund Grant from the US Department 
of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) in the amount of $1,177,868,.71 for the Alljoy 
Road Sidewalk project.  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – February 26, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Infrastructure 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The South Carolina Department of Transportation provided a grant opportunity through the 
Transportation Alternative Set Aside Program Fund which are distributed to local governments and 
other eligible entities to apply for grants for a variety of non-motorized transportation projects. 

As the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax project for Alljoy Road is a candidate project, the 
County sought after the grant to leverage funds for the Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways within the 
2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax program.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Alljoy Road project will include a 6’ wide sidewalk on the east side of the road from Burnt Church 
Road to Thomas Lawton Drive. This project will connect to future bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
currently programmed from Shad Avenue, Ulmer Road, Burnt Church Road, and the existing facility 
along Bridge Street. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The grant is an 80/20 match: 80% from USDOT FHWA and 20% Local Match. The grant award is for a 
total of $1,177,868.71 that will be refunded from the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax 
account 4705-80-0000-54500 to be used for the construction of the Alljoy Road Sidewalk Pathway 
project. With a total project estimated cost of $1,472,335.89, the County’s match is $294,467.18 from 
account number 4705-80-0000-54500. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends to approve the Resolution to accept the Transportation Alternative Set Aside 
Program Fund Grant from the US Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration 
(FHWA) in the amount of $1,177,868,.71 for the Alljoy Road Sidewalk project. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Resolution to accept the Transportation Alternative Set Aside Program 
Fund Grant from the US Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) in 
the amount of $1,177,868,.71 for the Alljoy Road Sidewalk project. 

52

Item 10.



Next Step: Motion to approve/deny the recommendation to accept the Transportation Alternative Set 
Aside Program Fund Grant from the US Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) for the amount of $1,177,868,.71 for the Alljoy Road Sidewalk project. 

 

53

Item 10.



RESOLUTION 2023 /__ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE SET ASIDE 

PROGRAM FUND GRANT FROM THE US DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION’S 

FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION (FHWA) FOR THE AMOUNT OF $1,177,868.71 

FOR THE ALLJOY ROAD SIDEWALK PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County Council adopted a One percent (1%) Transportation Sales Tax Ordinance on 

November 13, 2017, enumerating twenty-four (24) pathways projects to be funded for a total of Ten Million 

Dollars ($10,000,000); and  

  

WHEREAS the One Cent Sales Tax Referendum question to approve the one (1%) percent sales tax was 

passed on November 6, 2018; and 

  

WHEREAS the total cost of all the pathway projects will exceed the available funding from the sales tax 

referendum therefore, sought to leverage funds to complete the projects; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County was awarded $1,177,868.71 from the Transportation Alternative Set Aside 

Program Fund from the US Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) for 

the Alljoy Road Sidewalk Project; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County will execute the grant’s requirements during the duration of the project while 

completing all applicable reporting; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA hereby approves the acceptance of the Transportation Alternative Set 

Aside Fund Grant from the US Department of Transportation’s Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 

for the amount of $1,177,868.71 for the Alljoy Road Sidewalk Project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________, 2024. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

      BY:        

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

54

Item 10.



55

Item 10.



56

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Request for Private Road Acceptance of Scheper Lane into the County Road Inventory 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Meeting February 26, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure  

Neil Desai, P.E. Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 
 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Policy Statements 15 and 17 and the County’s posted Road Acceptance Procedures outline the process for private 
road acceptance into County Road Inventory.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The private portion of Scheper Lane is approximately 270 feet long. SCDOT owns the remaining portion of the 
road (S-280) that was resurfaced by the County in the Spring of 2023. The private portion of Scheper Lane 
was not resurfaced but is used by the public in association with Beaufort Middle School.  Residents have 
petitioned the County to bring the private portion of Scheper Lane into the County’s Road inventory.     Neil 
Desai, the Public Works Director, has estimated the following costs associated with the road. 
Tree removal (2 trees) $ 12,500  
Milling & resurfacing $25,000 
Install drainage boxes and pipes $30,000 
Estimated Total =$67,500 
Paul Drive, which bisects Scheper Lane, is scheduled to be resurfaced in 2024. This would be a convenient 
time to resurface the remaining portion of Scheper Lane. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Estimated potential costs $67,500  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Road Acceptance procedures outlined in Policy Statements 15 and 17 and the County’s posted Road 
Acceptance Procedures have been met to either accept or deny Scheper Lane into the County Road 
Inventory.  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny request for Private Road Acceptance of Scheper Lane into the County Road Inventory   

A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by full County 
Council vote. 

 

57

Item 11.



Scheper Lane Map 

State portion of Scheper Ln Resurfaced in 2023

<-Paul Drive Scheduled to 
be resurfaced in 2024

58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	January 22 2024

	Item 8.	Discussion of 2018 Transportation Sales Tax Project Update
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 022624 2018 Sales Tax Update (1)
	PFC 022624 Sales Tax Update

	Item 9.	(JF) SCDOT IGA
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 022624 SCDOT IGA (1)
	Beaufort Non-LOST IGA Draft 07.19.23.cls

	Item 10.	(JF) Acceptance of USDOT Grant for Alljoy Road Sidewalk
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 022624 TAP Grant Alljoy Road Sidewalk Project
	Resolution - TAP Grant - Alljoy Road Pathway
	02082024-TAP Award Notification -Alljoy Road Sidewalk Project

	Item 11.	(ND) Scheper Ln Private Road Acceptance
	AIS Scheper Ln private road acceptance
	Scheper Lane Map
	Scheper Ln Road Acceptance Letter-Petition 5-15-23

	Bottom

